
BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) 
) 

Complainant, ) 
) 

V. ) 
) 

ATKINSON LANDFILL CO., ) 
) 

Respondents. ) 

PCB No. 13-28 

MOTION TO STRiKE AND DISMISS FIRST 
AMENDED COMPLAINT AND SUPPORTING MEMORANDUM 

Respondent, ATKINSON LANDFfLL CO. ("ALC"), by its attorney, Kenneth Anspach, 

pursuant to§ 2-615 ofthe Code of Civil Procedure. 735 ILCS 2-6l5(a), § 2-619((a)(9) ofthe 

Code of Civil Procedure, 735 JLCS 2-619((a)(9), and§§ 101.100, 101.500 and 101.506 of the 

General Rules of the Pollution Control Board, 35 lll. Adm. Code I 01.100, I 01.500 and 101.506, 

hereby moves the Pollution Control Board (the ''Board") to strike and nismiss the First Amended 

Complaint (the .. Complaint'") of complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ("the 

STATE'"). and in support thereof states as follows: 

ALC is moving the Board to strike and dismiss the Complaint on the basis that it is 

substantially insufficient in law. For pw-poses of ruling on a motion to dismiss, all well-pled 

facts contained in the pleading must be taken as true, and aU inferences from them must be 

drawn in favor of the non-movant. People v. Stein Steel Mills Services, Inc., PCB 02-1 (Nov. 15. 

2001 ). It is well settled in this state that, although pleadings are to be liberally construed, and a 

defendant's motion to dismiss admits all facts well pleaded, nonetheless, in considering a motion 

to dismiss, the pleadings are lo be construed strictly against the pleader. Knox College v. Celotex 

Corporation. 88111. 2d 407. 422 ( 1981). The purpose of requiring that defects in pleadings be 

attacked by motion is to point om the defects in the pleadings so that the pleader will have an 
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opportunity to cure them before trial. !d. Notice pleading, which prevails under the federal rules 

IS not sutlicient under the Illinois Code of Civil Procedure, formerly the I11inois Civil Practice 

Act. Knox Colh·ge, 88 Ill. 2d at 424. The pleader must state the facts essential to his cause of 

acunn. Jd. A pfcad1ng which merely paraphrases the law, as though to say that the pleader's case 

will meet the legal requjremenls, without stating the facts, is insufficient. !d. Construing the 

Complaint strictly against the STATE, the Board must find that the Complaint is insufficient in 

law and must be sllicken and dismissed. 

1. COL'NTS 1-U RELATlNG TO AlLEGED DISCHARGES INTO THE VILLAGE STP ARE 
SUBSTA.t'fTJALLY INSUFFICIENT lN LAW AND MUST BE DISMISSED PURSUANT TO 
§ 2-61 S OF THE CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE, 735 lLCS 5/2-615. 

A. Counts 1 and lJ Each Fail to State a Cause of Action and Must Be Dismissed Pursuant to § 2-
615 ofthe Code of Civil Procedure. 735 lLCS 5/2-615. Because No Pennit Was Required for the 
Alleged Discharges That PurnonedJy Violated Permit No. 2008-E0-0331. 

As set fonb more fully below, Counts I and U of the Complaint allege that ALC allegedly 

disposed of leachate at the V 1llage of Atkinson sewage treatment plant (the "Village STP") in 

purported excess oftbe purported limits imposed by Pennit No. 2008-E0-0331 ("Pennit No. 

2008-E0-0331"), a copy of'' hicb is attached to the Complaint as Exhibit L and thereby 

allegedly violated§§ 12(a) and (b) of the lllioois Environmental Protection Act (the ·'Act"), 415 

TLCS 5•12(a) and (b). At the outset, it IS important to note that Counts I and lJ fail to allege a 

violation of§§ 1 2(a) and (b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5112(a) and (b), because no permit was 

required for that alleged disposal of leachate. 

Section 12(f) ofthe Act, .ll51LCS 5112(f), provides in pertinent part: 

No permit shall be required under this subsection and under 
Section 39(h) of this Act for any discharge for which a permit is 
not required under the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 
no\\ or hereafter amended [33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.), and 
regulations pursuant thereto. 
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Thus. no pem1ll is reqUired under the Act for \\."htch a permit is not required under the Federal 

Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq. 

("CWA "). Under the CW A. a pem1it, known as a National Pollution Discharge Elimination 

System ("1\rpDES") pcm1it, ts required under for any discharge of a pollutant from a point source 

to waters of the Cmted States. 1 However, an NPDES pennit is not required discharges directly 

anto a '""astewater treatment system, also known as a publicly owned treatment works 

("POTW").~ which is cxcJuued from the definition of''waters of the United Stales''. 3 

Accordingly, no pem1it is required for a discharge into a POTW pursuant to § 12(f) of the Act, 

415 fLCS 5 l2(f). 

TI1e Village STP is a POTW. Thus, no pcm1it was required for any discharge into the 

Village STP. The issuance of Permit No. 2008-E0-0331 to ALC was, at best, superfluous. 

Given that no pennit was required for any discharge into the Village STP, there could not have 

been any permit VIOlation for any discharge into the Village STP under§§ 12(a) and (b) of the 

•\ct, 415 rLCS 5, t2(a) and (b). 

Despite the reqturements of §12(1) of the Act, 415 lLCS 5/12(t), the Complaint alleges in 

Count IT. paragraphs I 7-23. that a permit is relfuired for discharges into a treatment works 

pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.204(a). That regulation states that "an operating pennit issued 

I CWA. H02. 33l' .S (' §13~2 
'40 C'FR ~ -W3.3(q) and CJ \ AC' 25-31-101 prov1de as follows. 
(q) The term Pubhcly Q\,ned Treatment Works or POTW means a treatment works as delined by section 212 of the 
Act, ,.,.b1ch lS owned by a State or mumcipality (as defined by§ 502(4) of the Act) Thss delimtton mcludes any 
cll'v1ces and systems US(!d m thl' Storage. treatment, recycling and reclamation of mumctpal sewage or mdustrial 
wastes of a liq1aid nature. It also includes sewers, pipes and other conveyances only sf they convey wastewater to a 
POTW Treatmem Plant. The term also means the munsc1pahty as defined in section 502(4) of the Act, which has 
Jttnsdrction over the Tndm~ct Discharges to and the dtschargcs from such a treatment works. Thus, under 40 CFR 
403 3(q). the Village of Atkmson STP. referred to IIl the Pemtit. is a Publicly Owned Treai.Tllenr Works or POTW. 
l.lnder § '\02(4J ofth~ \l~:nn \Vater Act, 33 U S.C § 1362(4). th~ term ''municipality'' mclucles "town . . or other 
public body ha,·ingJurisdtc.:tion over disposal of sewage. industrial wastes. or other wastes:· and would. accordingly, 
mdude the Village of •\t!..snsvn 

I C\\ A.~ 212(2)(:\) u L . ~ c § 1292(2)(A): -10 C.l· R 403 3(q), 40 C.F.R. 121.3(c). D.K McCall, rrr. Cletm 
Watt r Act. m Enmonm~ntal Ll\\ llaodbook (T Sulli\'::sn cd. 20 II) ("McCall") at 323-324 
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by the Agency"' is required for the ·'operation of any ... wastewater source." Yet, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 309.204 directly contradicts ~12(£) ofthc Act, 415 TLCS 5/12(f). Specifically, 35 Ill. 

Adm. Code 309.204(b)(l) provides that: 

No operating pem1il is required W1der this Section for any 
discharge .. . [ tlor '' hicb an 1\'POES pennit is required. 

~o. ~ 12(1) of the Act. 415 JLCS 5 '12(1). provides that, ''No permit shall be required ... for any 

discharge for \Yhich a lNPOES] penn it is not required." while 35 Til. Adm. Code 309.204(b)( 1) 

provides that, ''No operating permit is required ... for any clischarge ... [f]or which an NPDES 

pennit ts requ1rC'd1J 

This contradiction bem een the statute and the regulation is exactly what the Illinois 

legtslature was trying to avoid \\hen it adopted§ 12(f) of the Act, 415 lLCS 5112(f). The 

mtention of the General Assembly was set forth in EPA v. Culligan DuPage Soft Wacer Service, 

PCB No. 74-376. 1975 Ill. ENV LEXIS 54 (1975), which slates: 

When the ne\\ legislation did become effective in September 1973 
11 became apparent that the lllinois Legislature wished to avoid a 
dual pennit system. The Statute said: "lt is in the interest of the 
people of the State of Illinois for the State to authorize such 
NPOES program and secure Federal approval thereof, and thereby 
to avoid the existance [sic] of duplicative, overlapping or 
conllicting Stale and Federal statutory permit systems;'' [EPA 
Sec lion 11 (a)(5 )]. It was further provided: "No permit shall be 
required under this subsection and under Section 39(b) of this Act 
for any discharge for which a pennit is not required under the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972 (PL 92-
500) and Regulations pursuant thereto ... 

To the extent that 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.204 creates a "dual pennit system" in contradiction to 

the intention of lhe legislature and to § 12(1) of the Act, 415 fLCS 5112({), it is unlawful. Given 

thal no cause of net ion can therefore be staled under Counts I and U for violation of§§ 12(a) a.nJ 

(b) of the Act, 415 rLCS 5 12(a) and (b }. the entirety of CoW1ts I and IT must be dismissed for 

1 l:mphasts added. 
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failure 10 swh: a cause of action. Additional insufficiencies in Counts I and 11 are set forth 

B. The Complaint F:.Hls to AJJege Any Statutory Basis for the lssuance of Permit Ko. 2008-E0-
0331 or for its Attempted Restrictior. on the Disposal of Leachate. 

Paragraph 4 of Counts I and IJ alleges that ALC is operating a municipal solid waste 

landfill lJnuer a permit issued by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Tllinois EPA''). 

as follows. 

At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent owned and 
operated, and continues to own and operate, an active municipal 
solid \\Uste landfill located at 1378 Commercial Drive, Atkinson, 
Henry County. Illinois. Respondent operates the landfill under 
Pennit No. 2001-021-LFM, Modification No.5, Log No. 2010-
008. issued by the ll1inois EPA on April21, 2010. 

Thus. paragraph 4 alleges that ALC operates w1der authority of Illinois EPA Permit No. 2001-

0:! 1-LFM. Modification "Jo. 5. log 1\o. 20 I 0-068 (the "Operating Permit''). While not set forth 

in the C'omplnmt. presumably the Operating Penml was issued under authority of 35 111. Adm. 

Code 309.204(a). which states. in pertinent part. as follows: 

No person shall cause or allow the use or operation of 
any ... w·astewater source without an operating pennit issued by the 
Agency. 

No allt.:gallon is made that ALC is operating in violation of the Operating Permit. 

Parngraph 5 of Counts 1 and U alleges that Pem1il No. 2008-E0~0331 was also issued to 

ALC by Illinois EPA. No allegation is made either in Count I or Count II setting forth the 

statuto! y basts for the purported issuance of Pem1it No. 2008-E0-0331, or why it was e\·en 

necessarv, gwen that .1\LC was already operatmg under the Operating Permit. As set forth in 

Part I(A) of1his motion. no such permit was required. 
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Section 31(c)( 1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31 (c)(l) requires that any complaint filed by the 

Attomey General thereunder "shall specify the provision of the Act, n1le. regulation, permit. or 

tem1 or cond1t1on rhereo f under which such person is said to be in violation and a statement of 

the mrumer in and the extent to which such person is said to violate the Act, rule, regulation, 

pem1it. or tcnn or condition thereof" By failing to allege the provision of the Act authorizing 

the issuance of this secmmgl) superfluous pennit. the Complaint cannot be deemed to have met 

the requirement of§ 3I(c)( I) ofthe Act, 415 fLCS 5/3l(c)(l), that the '·provision of the 

Act. .. unclt.-r \\hich such person is said to be in violation" be specified. Charges in an 

admtnistrati\ c proceeding need not be drawn with the same refinements as pleadings in a court 

of law. hut the charges must be sufficiently clear and specific to allow preparation of a defense. 

and~ 31 oftl1c Act. 415 ILCS * s. 31 requires notice of a speciJic violation charged and notice of 

the spertfic conduct constituting the violation. Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Co. v. Pollution Comrol 

Board ('Liord A. Fl)' Ror~fing Co.''), 20 Ill. App. 3d 30 I, 305 (2"d Dist. 1974). 

C. The Al1egations of Counts lAnd II are Vague And Ambiguous, as are the Tem1s ofPennit 
No. 200S-E0-0331 upon v:btch !hey are Based. and Thereby FaiJ to Provide Notice of a Specific 
Violauon Char!!ed and Nottce of the Specific Conduct Constltuting the Violation. 

The allcgattons of Counts I and rr of the Complrunt concern alleged violations oflhe 

tem1s of Pennit No. 2008-E0-033 l . Yet. ns set forth in detail hereinbelow, the tcnns ofPennit 

No. 200S-EO-fl33l are unintelhgible. vague and ambiguous. Where there is any ambiguity as to 

the meaning of the language used in a document it should be const111ed most strongly against the 

drafter unucr the doctrine of contra proferemem. Harris 1'. American General Fmance Corp 

( 'Hani~· 'J, 5-l Ill. App 3d 835, 8~0 (Jrd Dist. 1977). Pem1it No. 2008-E0-0331 has multiple 

ambignilics that musl be thusly construed against the drafter. i.e., the STATE. 
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Moreover, as set forth above charges in an administrative proceeding must be sufficiently 

clear ami specific to allow preparation of a defense. Lloyd A. Fl}' Roofing Co .. 20 TIL App. 3d at 

305. Because the charges In the Complaint rely upon the unintelligible. vague and ambiguous 

language of Pem1it No. 2008-E0-0331 as set forth below, the allegations of Counts I and n fail to 

meet this minimal standard. 

i. Permit No. 2008-E0-0331, which Purports to Authorize ALC to "operate ... facilities 
described as ... [t]he hauling of approximately 12.000 gpd" is Unintelligible, Ambiguous 
and Vague. 

Paragraph 5 of Counts I and Il alleges that, in addition to the Operating Permit, another 

permit, i.e., Penn it No. 2008-E0-0331, was also issued to ALC by Illinois EPA. No allegation is 

made either in Count l or Count lT regarding the statutory basis for the purported issuance of 

Pem1it No.2008-E0-0331, or why it was even necessary, given that ALC was already operating 

under the Operating Pem1it. As set forth in Part T(A) of this motion, no such permjt was 

required. 

Par;.tgraph 5 additionally sets forth the fol1owing language from Pem1it No. 2008-EO-

0331: 

Permit is hereby granted to the above designated perrnittee(s) to 
construct and/or operate water pollution control facilities described 
as follows: 

The hauling of approximately 12,000 gpd5 (DMF of12,000 gpd) of 
landfill leachate to the headworks ofthe Village of Alk1nson STP. 

"·DMF. "'paragraph 5 fi.1rther explains, "means design maximum flow." However, even with 

this explanation, the quoted language ofPennit No. 2008-E0-033L and, hence, of paragraph 5. 

makes no sense. How IS it possible for one to "operate ... facilities described as ... [t]he hauling or 

approximately 12,000 gpd'!" 

' Gallons pet uoy. 
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That the quoted language from Pem11t No. 2008-E0-033 1 is unintelligible, as is paragraph 

4 of Counts I and 11 where the quotation is set forth. is confinned by reference to definitions of 

the key words set forth therem. The word "hauling" is nowhere defined in the Act. The word 

··hauling" was found in the Free Online Dictionary, which defines it as "[t]o pull or drag 

forcibly: mg." The\\ ord ··facility'' is also not defined m the Act, although the phrase "pollution 

control facility" is delincd or & 3.330(a) of the Act. 415 fLCS 5/3.330(a). as follows: 

"Po ll ution control facllity" is any waste storage site, sani tary 
land fi ll , waste disposal site, waste transfer station, waste treatment 
factlity. or \\'aste incinerator. This includes sewers. sewage 
treatment plants. and any other facilit1es owned or operated by 
sannary districts organized under the Metropolitan Water 
Reclamation Disrrict Act 70 ILCS2605t I et seq. 

Ne~:till!ss to Sa). "hauling .. or "to pull or drag forcibly'' is not included or even remotely 

contemplated by the Jcfinition of pollution control facility. Since "hauling" or "to pull or drag 

forcibl}" is not inclU<.kd or even remotely contemplated by the definition of"fncility'' or 

"pollution control facility." under Harns the amb1guity thereby created must be construed 

against the STATE At'cordingly. Pennit No. 2008-E0-0331 must be deemed unenforceable and 

void 

ii . Petmit No. 2008-E0-0331, which Refers to ''approximately 12.000 gpd" is 
i\.mbtguous and Vague. 

Further, the quL)ted language from Permit No. 2008-E0-0331 refers to "approximately 

12.0UU [gallons per da) 1 " The \\·ord ··approximate" set forth in the quoted language is nowhere 

defined in the Act. It is, however, defined at Black's Law Dictionary, 51
h Ed .• in pertinent part, 

as "[ u )sed in the sense of an estimate merely, meaning more or less, but about and near the 

umount. yuanti t )'. or Jist.mcc ::.pcci fie d." Thus. •· .1pproximatcly 12.000 gallons per clay·· is a 

mere estimate. and could mean more than 12.000 gallons per day. 
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Parabrraph 6 of Counts 1 and rr alleges that: 

During the months ofMarch and April2011, Respondent hauled 
and dtsposed ofleachate at the Village STP in excess ofthe 
approximately I 2.000 gallons per day limit allowed by the Water 
Pollution Control Pennit [Permit No. 2008-E0-0331.] 

Thus, paragraph 6 alleges that ALC disposed or "in excess of the approximately 12,000 gallons 

per da) limit allowed b) the Water Pollution Control Pem1it [Pcnnjt No. 2008-E0-0331.)" Yet. 

Lhe Complaint does not allege that Permit No. 2008-E0-0331 contains a "limit." Certainly, no 

"limit'' IS SrJl forth in Permit No. 1008-E0-0331. Petmit No. 2008-E0-0331 merely states, 

'·Penmt IS hereby granted to the abo\e designated pem1ittee(s) to construct and/or operate .. . [t]he 

hauling of approximately 12,000 gpdr, (DMF of 12,000 gpd) of landfill leachate to the beadworks 

of the V11lagc of Atkinson STP.'' Nothing in the permit stntes that the hauling of more than 

"approximately 12.000 gallons per day" is barred In fact, a reasonable interpretation of the 

quott..:u l<urguage is that 11 .tuthonzcs hauling at least "approximately 12,000 gallons per day." 

Another reasonable inteq>retation is that Permit No. 2008-E0-0331 authorizes the hauling of not 

only appro....:unately 12.000 gallons per day'' to the "headworks." but also more to lhe headworks 

or to some other locatwn 

Paragraph 6 also contains a table of nlleged exceedances of the purported "approximalely 

12.000 gallons per da)" limit. Yet, many ofthc ftgures se1 forth do not appear in excess ofthat 

purported limit. For C).:lmple. there are nine mstances of the alleged disposal of" l2, 720 

gallons ... Ce1iainly. that figure is within the definition of"about and near the amount, 

qLtantJLy ... specified'' or an ··e-stimate merely" of I 2,000 gallons. Construing th1s ambiguity 

agamst the S rATE would re4uire a finding that there was no violation of Penn1t No. 2008-EO-

' Gallon~ ('!Ct da\ , 
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0331. even for disposal of as much leachate as 50.880 gallons in a day as set forth in paragraph 

6. 

iii. TI1e l se (.)r the Phrase "Head works" Renders Permit No. 2008-E0-0331 
Uninlclligiblc. Ambiguous and Vague. 

Permit ;...;o. 2008-E0-0331 also contains the phrase ''head works.'' "Head works" is not 

dctined either under the Act or in the Illinois Administrative Code. The STATE neither proffers 

a defimuon or a\ers that the tem1 is defined elsewhere. No definition of"head works" can be 

found at the American Heritage Dictionary of the English Language, Third Edition ("Amen can 

I lentagc .. ). and none can be found at Mernrun-Webster.com. Both of those dictionaries have 

tlefiniuons. however. for "headwork," which in American Heritage Dictionary is defmed as 

"Mental ac1ivity or \\ork. thought"' and at Merriam-Webster.com, which defines "headwork'' as 

"mental labor: espccllllh : clc\ er thinking." a definition that has been in use since 1837. Given 

those definitions, "h\!atlwotk.s" would be defined as "mental labors." Obviously, it does not take 

much mental labor to ascerta1n that the reference to .. head works'' in Permit No. 2008-E0-0331 

as set forth in the allegations at paragraph 4 of Counts I and ll is ambiguous, at best. 

L·ndcr Harri.,. construing ··headworks" agnmst the drafter of Permit No. 2008-E0-0331. 

1 e., the ST A fE, suggests that the pem1il really does not designate a definable point where ALC 

ts reqUired to Jisposc of any leachate thereunder. If there is no defmable point, then the disposal 

"of approximately 1 :!.000 gpd (D!vlF of 12,000 gpd) of landfill leachate to the hcaJworks" could 

be accomplished at any location and at any time. Under those circumstances, even the disposal 

of as much as 50,880 gallons in a day would not be deemed a pem1it violation. 

That allegations may not be based upoo alleged violation of the ambiguous tenns of a 

pem1ir was the holdtng in Ciu:t.'ns l..t;/tfles Compunr of Illinois v. Illinois Polltmon Com rot 

Board ('('iu:.ens U11liTies "). 127 Ill. App. 3d 504, 507 (3n1 Dist. 1984). as follows: 

10 

Electronic Filing - Recived, Clerk's Office :  06/07/2013 



laking the penmt first, it is apparent that the import of Conditions 
3(a) and 3td) is rounded upon operation and maintenance to 
pre\ ent \Vater pollution. [t is apparently the position of lEPA and 
the Board that unsatisfactory conditions which could potentially 
lead to water pollution are sufficient to premise violations upon. 
The prohlem ll'ith this posuion is that witllour reference ro acwal. 
resultm~ pollutum. the conditions are too vague for rational 
e1~{orcemcnt. Usc o.fsuch terms us "eft1ciently as possible'1 and 
''apli/1111111 operatmn and maintenance" wahout reference 10 the 
ahi/11_) or uwblluy of the plnmto operate free of mwcceprahle 
discharges render,., these swndards meaningless. (Emphasis 
added.) 

Thus, in Cin::ens Utilities. the usc of vague tenns in a petmit such as "efficiently as possible" 

and "optimum operation and maintenance'' rendered any standards for enforcement based 

thereon to be "meaningless." Similarly. here, the inclusion of vague terms such as 

"operatc ... racilities described as ... [t]he hauling of approximately 12.000 gpd,'' .. approximately 

12,000 gallons per day,'' and "Head \\Orks'' also renders any standards for enforcement based 

thereon to be "meaningless ... 

Under these circumstances U1e charges set forth in this Complaint are not sufficiently 

clear and spcct tic to nllo\\ preparation of a defense, and are violative of the requirement of§ 31 

of the \ct.~ 15 ILCS ~ 5 31. in that they fail to set fonh notice of a specific violation charged 

and notice of the specific conduct consti1uting the violation. Lloyd A. FIJ' Roofing Co. v. 

Polluttolz Control Board. 20 Ill. App 3d at 305. For the reasons set forth above, the allegat1ons 

of Counts I and ll fail to meet e\ en this minimal standard. 

D. Sin<:e No Specific Violations of Pretreatment Standards Are Alleged Under 40 C.F.R. 
403.5( 8)( 1 HS) and 35 Ul. Adm. Code 307.11 Ol(B)(l H 13). No Cause of Action is Stated. 

Paragraph 16 of Coums 1 and II alleges, as follows· 

The discharge of certain types of wastewater. including leachate 
generated by landfills, muy cuuse serious hann to the Village STP 
by upselling the treatment process, interfering with the nonnal 
operation of the STP. or causing conditions at the STP which may 
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be ham1ful to STP workers ami wh_ich may result in contaminants 
passing through the Village STP untreated. (Emphasis added.) 

Thus. paragraph 16 of Counts 1 and rr alleges that leachate "ma_v cause serious harm to the 

Village STP by upscttmg the treatment process. mterfering with the normal operation of the STP. 

or causmg condiltons at the STP which may be bam1ful to STP workers." No acwal upset, pass 

through. interference. harm to workers or damage to the Village STP is alleged. 

In ract. 1 r actual upset. tnlerfen.mce, pass through. hann or damage to the Village STP had 

occulTed there would have been an ample legal basis to bring an action against ALC. Landfills 

that discharge trucked leachate into POTWs are subject to pretreatment standards for 

introducllon of pollutants mto treatment works. 

The fir.st pan of the pretreatment standards addresses the control of pollutants that pass 

through or interfere with treatment processes in POTWs.7 It applies to pollutants indirectly 

d1scharg;cd mto or tronspotied b: truck or rail or otherwise introduced into POTWs, to POTWs 

thnt recel\ e \\ astc\\ a1e1 from sources subJect 10 pretreatment standards and to any new or 

existmg source sub_1ect to such pretreatment standards.~-~ It establishes a general prohibition 

agamst pollutants that cause pass through or inlerference.9 A pass through is defined as a 

discharge that exits the POTW inlo waters of the United States that alone or in conjunction with 

d1scharges from other sources cause a VIolation ofthe POTW's NPDES pennit. 10 lnterfercnce is 

deline<.l as u discharge that, alone or in conjunction with discharges from other sources, mh1bits 

or disrupts the POTW. ils treatment processes or operations, or its sludge processes. use or 

disposaL an<.l thcl\~forc IS a cause of a VIolation of any requirement ofrhe POTW's NPDES 

.HJ C F R 403.1 
-tO CF.R 403J(b) 

'' 40 C.F R. 403 .5(a)( 1): 35 Ill Adm Code 307 11 U I (a) and 310 20 I (a). 
1
" 40 C.F R 403.3(p). 
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pem1it or of the prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal in compliance with various federal 

statutes. 11 

The second part of the pretreatment program establishes specific prohibitions against 

discharges into a POTW of pollutartts that create a fire or explosion hazard, pollutants that will 

cause conosive stluctural damage to the POTW. pollutants that will cause an obstmction to the 

flowing within the POTW. oxygen demandmg poJlutants at a flow rate or concentration that will 

cause interference, heat in amounts that will inhibit biological activity in the POTW, petroleum 

and other oils, pollutants \vhich result in the presence oftoxic gasses, vapors. or fumes within the 

POTW in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety problems, and any trucked or 

hauled pollutants. except at discharge points designated by the POTW. 12 

Yet, nowhere in the entirety of the Complaint are actual violations of the above-cited 

federal and state regulations constituting the pretreatment program actual()' alleged. All that is 

alleged is that leachate "may cause serious harm to the Village STP by upsetting the treatment 

process, interfering with the nom1al operation of the STP, or causing conditions at the STP 

which may be ham1flll to STP workers and which may result in contaminants passing through 

the Village STP untrented."!J That something "may cause" harm is not tantamount to actually 

causing ham1. The STATE has not even attempted to allege either that actual hann occurred or 

that an actual violation of the pretreatment regulations occurred. As the Board cautioned the 

STATE in EPA v. Rosenbalm, PCB No. 71-299, 1973 Ill. ENV LEXIS 2 (January L6, 1973): 

.. ./TV] e caution the Age11cy and its representatives to avoid unfair. 
omnibus pleadings ·which either intend to sweep within its purview 
proSJ1ecth·e violations 11•hich may occur subsequent to the filing of 
the complaint, or arc so vague and indefinite as to fail to give the 

11 40 C.F.R. 403.~~k) . 
11 40 CF.R. 403.5(b)ll H 8); 35 Til. Adm. Code 307.11 Ol(b)l l )-(13). 

" Counts rand IT pa1 I (l , 
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Respondent fair notice of the specific dates of alleged infractions 
of U1e Ia"\' so as to enable him to properly prepare a defense. 
(Emphasis added.) 

Thus, allegations about events that "may occur," according to the Board ''fail to give the 

Respondent lair notice of the specific dates of alleged infractions of the law so as to enable him 

to properly prepare a defense:· 1'\ote. in this regard, that there arc affim1ative defenses available 

to a party that has been chargrd with an acwal \ iolation under 35 111. Adm. Code 3 I 0.20 l; these 

are not a\ adable to ALC here 

-\s set tonh above. charges in an administrative proceeding ... must be sufficiently clear 

and speci fie to allm:\' prepru·ution of a defense, and this section requires notice of a specific 

violnt1nn charged and notice ol the spcclfi.c conduct constituting the violation. Lloyd A. Fn 

Roo.finl?. Co .. ~() Ill. App. 3d at 305. Here, neither the speclfic violation nor the conduct 

constituttng the violatiOn is se1 forth. 

E. Counts I atld ll Fail to Surricientlv Allege That ALC Caused or Contributed to Water 
Polluuon in Violation of §12(u) and (b) ofthc Act. 415 lLCS 5/12(a) and (b). 

Paragraph 8 ofCoum 1 and n sets forth the stat11tory prohibition on water pollution at 

§ 12(a) of the A. ct. 415 I LCS 51 12(a}. as follows: 

No person shall· 
(a) Cause or threaten or allow the discharge of any contaminants 
mto the c:nvironment in any State so as to cause or tend to cause 
water pollution in ntinois. either alone or in combination with 
ma!ler from other sources. or so as to violate regulations or 
standards adopted by the PoUution Control Board under thjs Act. 

Thus. 111 order to violate § l1(a) of the Act. 415 fLCS 5/ l2(a). one must ··cause or threaten or 

allow the discharge of contaminants .. . so as to cause or tend to cause water pollution." 

Paragraph 1" of Counts I and fJ quotes the statutory detinition of '·Water Pollution .. at 

See11on 3.545 of the Act. 415 ILCS 53 545 (2010). as follows: 
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"WATER POLLUTION'' is such alteration of the physical. 
them1al. chemical, biological or radioactive properties of any 
waters of the State, or such discharge of any contaminant into any 
waters of the State, as will or is likely to create a nuisance or 
render such waters hamrful or detrimental or injurious to public 
health, safety or welfare, or to domes1ic, corrunercial, industrial, 
ag~iculturaJ, recreational. or other legitimate uses, or to livestock, 
wild animals, birds. fish, or other aquatic life. 

Thus. in order for there to be "water pollution" there must be actual "alteration of the physical, 

thennal, chemical. biological or radioactive properties of any waters of the State, or such 

discharge of any comaminam uuo any warers of the Stare (emphasis added)." "Waters of the 

state'' is undefined in the Act or regulations. However, as set forth above, POTWs are excluded 

from the definition of "waters of U1e United States''. 1
-l The Village STP is a POTW. Thus. 

discharges into the Village STP cannot constitute "water pollution." 

Paragraph 18 of Count I alleges, as follows: 

By disposing o[\andfillleachate at the Village STP in excess of 
the approximately 12,000 gallons per day limit imposed by the 
Water Pollutwn Control Pe1111it, and thereby threatening the pass 
through of untreated wastewater into the Green River, Respondent 
threatened the discharge of a contaminant into waters of the State 
which could cause or tend to cause water pollution in violation of 
Section 12(a) ofrhe Act, 4151LCS 5112(a) (2010). 

TI1us, paragraph 18 alleges that ALC, by allegedly disposing ofleachate at the Village STP m 

excess of the purported limits Imposed by Pennit No. 2008-E0-0331, ALC allegedly caused 

water pollution in \'iolation of§ 12(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a). Yet, as set forth above, in 

order to violate §I 2ta) of the Act, 415 fLCS 5/12(a), one must "cause or threaten or allow the 

discharge of contammants ... so as to cause or lend to cause water pollution." Here, there is no 

allegation either that ALC' caused or threatened or allowed the discharge of contaminants so as to 

cause or tend to cause water pollution in the waters of the state. All that is alleged is that ALC 

1 ~ See l'W•\ , * 212(2){/\J. .33 ( 1 S.C * 1292(2)( ;\): 40 C.F.R. 403.3(q); 40 C.F.R. 122.3(q, 
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discharged leachate mto a POTW. While paragraph I 8 mentions "threatening the pass through 

of untreated "'·asrewatcr into the Green River," a "water of the state." there is no allegation that 

l111s thrc::.~t caused or tended to cause water pollution. a requirement of§ 11{a) or the Act, 415 

ILCS 51 12(a ). As the court hdd in Ci1i:::ens Utilities, 127 lll. App. 3d at 507. discussed in Part 

I(C) of this \'lotion: 

The prohkm with this posllion is that without reference to actual, 
result1ng pollution, the conditiOns are too vague for rational 
enforcement. 

There 1s no alleged "actual. resulting pollution" arising from alleged violations of the standards 

set forth in Pen11it No 2008-C0-0331. tvtoreovcr. as set forth in Pan T(A) ofth1s Motion, no 

pem1it was re4uirt;d for the alleged d scharges into the Village STP. in any e\Cnt. Thus. the 

entirety of Counts I 1s insufficient to state a canse of action under §ll(a) of the Act, 415ILCS 

511 }(a). Accordingly, Count I must be stricken and dismissed. 

Similarly, allegations in Count n 1hat A LC violated § 12(b) of th~ Act, 415 lLCS 5112{b), 

also fail to state a cause of act1on. Paragraph 16 ofCountli quotes§ 12(b) oflhe AcL 415 ILCS 

St l.2(b). as follows: 

No person shall: 

(b) Construct, install, or operate any equipment, facility, vessel, or 
atrcrall capable of or contributing to water pollution, or des1gned 
to prevent water pollution. of any L)1)C designated by Board 
regulations. '' ithout a penn it granted by the Agency, or in 
\ IOlatton of an) conditions imposed by such permit. 

Paragraph 24 ufCount ll alleges that the hauling and disposal of leachate from the ALC landl'ill 

to the Village STP 'iolated this section by being "capable of or contributing to water pollution'' 

through purportedly disposmg of alleged conlamin::mts in violation of Pem1it No. 2008-E0-033 I 

Yet. ··water pollution" requires a discharge into'\' aters of the state" pursuant to Section 3.545 of 
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thL Act. 415 ILCS 'i 3.545 Count ll contnins no allegation that the discharge reached or even 

threatened to reach an) water of the state, other than an reference m paragraph 23 that disposal at 

the Village STP a1so constituteu uisposal ''illdtrecrly to the Green River, a water of the State." 

(Emphasis addeu.) Yet. pursuant to -W CFR 112.2 .. an '·mdirect discharger means a nondomestJc 

discharger introuucing ''pollutants" to a "publicly owned treatment works." (Emphasis added.) 

So. the STATE"s allegation of an "indirect" discharge into the Green River is nothing more than 

a roundabout manner of allcgmg that ALC discharged leachate into a POTW. i.e .• the Village 

STP. which is not a water of the state. Hence, Count ll fai ls to allege a cause of action for 

violatton of s 12(h) of the Act. -H5 !LCS 5t 12(b). Moreover. as set fonh in Part l(A) ofthis 

Motion. no permit was required for the alleged discharges into the Village STP. in any event. 

Thus, the ent1ret) of Count IT 1s insufficient to state a cause of action under§ l2(b) of the Act. 

415 fLCS 5 112(h). Accordingly, it must be stricken and dismissed. 

F. No Authoritv Exists Linder§ 31 of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act ("Act"). 415 
lLCS 5 '31. for the Attorney General to Bring an Action on Her Own Motion. 

Counts I and n of the Complaint begin by alleging at paragraph l that: 

Th1s Count is hrought on behalf ofthe PEOPLE OF THE STATE 
OF ILLINOIS, by LISA MADfGAN, Attorney General ofthe 
State ofJIIjnois, 011 her own motion and at the request of the 
Illinois EPA. p11rsuanr w Section 31 of the lllinots Environmental 
Protection ~lu <"Act"), .:t15 fLCS 5 31 (2010), against Respondent 
\tkinson L:.~nc.HIII Co. (EmphasiS added.) 

Thus. the STATE alleges that Counts 1 and 11 are ''brought. .. by LISA MADIGAN ... on her own 

mot1on . pursuam to Sectton 31 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5'31 (201 0) . .'' However, there is no 

provision in § J 1 or the Act authmiz.ing the Attorney General to bring an action "on her own 

mot1on ·· The 011!) authonty for the A.uomcy General to bring an action "on b1s own mot10n" 

lies tn § 42(c) of the Act, 415 fLCS 5/42(e) which prov1des: 
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(e) The State's A.ttomey of the county in which the violation 
occun·ed. or tin. A11on1e'' General, mal'. at the request of the 
Agency or on Ius own motion. institute a civil action for an 
injunction. proh1hnory or mandatory. to restrain violations of this 
Act. an) rule or regulation adopted under this Act, any permit or 
tenn or condition of a pem1it. or any Board order. or to require 
such other actions as may be necessary to address violations of this 
Act. an) rule or regulation adopted under this Act, any pem1it or 
teT111 N condttlon of a pem1it. or any Board order. (Emphasis 
added.) 

Th1s pn1' ts1on \\a~ construed in People r. V L lmlustrtes. 152 Ill. 2d 82. 103 ( 1992). which held: 

W/u•rt' the stallltc neglects to specify which party is to file a certain 
actton it must he recogni1cd that the State's Attorney of the county 
m '"hich the' iolation occun·ed or the Attomey General is allowed 
to t.lo so. 

The Attorney General should have the authority to file actions 
bl!fore both the Board and the circuit courts to redress violations of 
the \ct. H here,·cr a spe( tjic parf.l is nnt autlwn::.ed by the Ace. 
(Emphns1s added). 

Of course. ~ 31 (b) of the AcL 4 I 5 lLCS § 5131 (b). IS quite specific that Lhe Attorney General 

nwy bnng. i.!Cltons thereunder. hut only on the basis of"the Agency's rcfenal or request to the 

Oflice orthe Illino1s Attorney General or the State's Attomey of the county in which the alleged 

violatjon occurred ror legal representation regarding an alleged violation that may be addressed 

pursuant to subsection (c) or (d) ofthis Section." Thus, there simply IS no basis for this 

Cornplaml being ··hrought. .. by LISA MADIGAN .. . on her own motion .. . pursuant to Section 31 

orrhe Act 415 ILCS 5/31 (2010) .. .'' 

U COL'~TS 1 AND Il MUST BE DISMISSED UNDER & 2-619(a){9) OF THE CODE OF 
ClVIL PROCEDURE. 735 ILC'S '-619{a)(9). 

A. AT C"'~ All.eged r>i~1Q~al9_fJ..eachate at the Village STP Was Authorized Under Special 
Conditions 2 And J or Pemut No. 1008-E0-0331 aml Pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1101 
and 40 Cf-R 403.5(8! as Discharges "at Discharge Points Designated by the POTW." 

18 

Electronic Filing - Recived, Clerk's Office :  06/07/2013 



Counts I and ll of the Complaint allege that ALC allegedly disposed of leachate at the 

Village nt· Atkmson sev .. age treatment plant (the "Village STP") in purported excess of the 

purponed ltmns tmposcd by PL'111111 t'-lo. ~008-E0-0331 and at a location purportedly other than 

that spectfi~d in Pemni'Jo. 2008-E0-0331 and thereby allegedly violated§~ 12(a) and (b) of the 

Act. 415 I LCS 5 12(a) and (b). Yet, A LC' s alleged disposal uf leachate at the Vi II age STP was 

specifically authoriLed under Permit No. 1008-E0-0331 and under both state and federal law. 

II is true that Pcnnit ).1('1. 2008-E0-0331 purports to authorize "[t]he hauling of 

approxinMtel:- I 2,000 gpd (DMf of 1.2,000 gpd) oflandfillleachate to the headworks of the 

\ illagc or .\tkinson STP: ' Therefore. Pem1it No. 2008-E0-0331 does seem to purport to dictate 

the amount of discharge~ of I em: hate by ALC thereunder. However. the Pem1it also states, as 

rollows: 

SPECIAL COI'\DITIO 2: The issuance ofthts permit does not 
relieve the permittee of complying wi1h 35 111. Adm. Code. Part 
30- and or the General Pretreatment Regulations (40 CFR 403) 
and any guidelines developed pursuant to Section 301, 306, or 307 
of the federal Clean Water Act of 1977. 

SPEC1AL CONDITlON 3: The issua11ce of this permit does not 
relie\ e the pem1ittee of the responsibility of complymg with any 
limitations and provisions imposed by the City of Atkinson. 

Thus, Spectal Condition 2 pro\ u..les that ALC must comply with. inter alta, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

Part 307 w1J .trJ CFR 403. as ""ell as the CWA. In tlus regard, 35 lll. Adm. Code 307.1 l 01 

pro\ ides. as follo\\s: 

No person may intro<.luce the following types of pollutants mto a 
POT\\' · 
*** 
( 13) Any trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points 
de ''lgnutccl h\· tlu POTH' (EmphasiS added.) 

Llke'' ise. -lO CFR 403 5 provu.les. as follows: 
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[Tjhe followi11g pollutants shall not be introduced into a POTW: 

*** 
(8) All) tTIId.cd or hauled pollutants, e."Ccepr at discharge points 
designated h1 the POTW (Emphasis added.) 

Thus. a POT\\ . in this instance the Atkinson STP. has the authority under both 35 Ot. Adm. 

Code Pm1 307 ,md 40 CFR 403 to destgnate dtscharge potnts where "[a]ny trucked or hauled 

pollutants" may he discharged. fn addition, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1101{13) and 40 CFR 

403.5(8). in refcmng to the won.! ··any" trucked or hauled pollutants, authorizes the POTW to 

determine the ammmt of the discharge. 15 Pcm1it No. 2008-E0-033 I, at Special Condition 2, 

specifically states that A LC must comply \\ i th those provisions. 

ln additiOn, Permit No. 2008-E0-0331 requires that ALC must ·•comply ... with any 

ltmitations and JWO\ isions imposed by the City of Atkinson [sic]." Thus, ALC was required to 

comply with unv lnmtations or provisions imposed by the Atkmson STP with respect to the 

a1nount and loca!ion ofleachate Jischargcs into the Atkinson STP. 

ALC ditl. in fact, comply with both 35 Ill. Adm. Code Part. 307 and 40 CFR 403, i.e., 

spccificall} 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1 101( 13) and 40 CFR 403.5(8), and the limitations and 

prO\ is1ons 1mpo~ed b) the\ illage STP w1th regard to the dtscharge ofleachatc. Attached hereto 

as Exhibit "A" is the affidavit of Gary £-lull. a truck driver for ALC, who testifies that Bob 

Flaming, Public 'Narks Sup~o:f\'isor for the Village of Atkinson, specifically designated the 

discharge point lor the A LC leachate. In that regard, Bob Flaming inshucted Gary Hull to 

dispose of lh~: leachate at the sewer access at the abantloned gas station located on the southwest 

comer of the intcrst'ction of Stale Street (County Road 5) and Commercial Drive in the Village 

ot 1\tktnson Therefore. the discharge that is the subject of Counts I and TT of the Complaint was 

spccilicall) authorized under Special Condition 2 of Permit No. 2008-E0-033 J hecause it 

~~The \\ord "any· is tkfmed 111 perun~nt pan as "Some: one out of many; an indefmite number,. Black"s Law 
DtCI1003I~ ~ Itt l .d 
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complied wttb the pr<n tstons of 35 111. Adm. Code Part 307 and 40 CFR 403 and with Special 

l\llH.liuon 3 ofPem1il "1\.!o. 2008-E0-0331 in that it complied with the ltmitnttons and provisions 

Imposed by the Villrlgc 0 (Atkinson. further, the discharge 1hat is the SLtbject of Counts I and n 

of the Complaint complied v,ith the provisions of 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1101 ( 13) and 40 CFR 

403 5(Sl because tl was dtscharged at pomts designated by the POTW. Additionally. since 

parahrraph 6 of Counts l and U allege that 16.960 gallons were discharged tnto the Village STP 

on March 16. 2011, l)ll\.: must conclude that lhe Village of Atkinson thereby also designated the 

li/IIU/11/( of tlle discharge pursuant LO Lhe terms or Special Conditions 2 and 3 of Pem1it No. 2008-

E0-0331 and 35 Ill Adm Code 307.1101(13) and 40 CFR403.5(8). Accordingly, there was no 

,.i,)lation ofPem1it No. 2008-E0-0331 or of the Act. 

lll. COI:JNTS fll-IV RELATING TO D1SCHARGES INTO THE GALVA WWTF ARE 
SUBSTANTIALLY INSUFFTCEENT fN LAW AND MUST BE DISMISSED PURSUANT TO 
§ 2-615 OF THE CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE, 735 IlCS 5/2-615. 

A. Counts III and I\' rail to Sufticiently Allege That ALC Caused or Contnbuted to Water 
Polluuon in Violation of § I '">(a) and (b) and of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a) and (b). 

Paragraph b or' Counts l and ll, incorporated into Coullts 111 and IV sets forth the 

statutoryprohibil!on on water pollution at§ 12(a) of the Act, 415 lLCS 5/12(a). As set fonh in 

dctailm Part I( E) ol'this Motion lo Dismiss. in order to violate §12(a) of the Act 415 ILCS 

5 l.::!{a). one must .. causl.. or threaten or allow the discharge of contaminants ... so as to cause or 

tent! to cause water pollutton:' 

Paragraph 15 ofCoullts I and II, incorporated into Counts Ill and IV, quotes the statutory 

definition of ·•water Pollution .. at Section 3.545 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.545 (2010). Yet, as 

set fonh in Pan l(E) of thjs Motion. in order for there to be "water pollution" there must be 

actu.il ··afterarion of the physical. thennal, chemical, biological or radioactive proper6es of any 

11 arcrfi of the Stme. or such discharge of ell I\ COIIl{IIJ1illant into any waters o.f the .Stare ( emphasts 
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added):' The Gal\ a W\VTf is a POTW As further set forth in Part l(E) of this Motion to 

Dismiss," waters of the State" do not include POTWs. 

Paragraph~!) ofCount lll alleges, as follows: 

By disposing oflandfillleachate at the Galva WWTF without any 
penn it tssued hy the lllinots EPA, and thereby threatening the pass 
tlU'ough of untreated wastewater mlo the Edwards River, 
Respondent threatened the discharge of a contaminant into waters 
of the State\\ hich could cause or lend to cause water pollution in 
'iolution ofSccllon 12(a) ofthe Act, .tl51LC'S 5/12(a} (2010). 

Thus. paragraph 20 til leges that ALC. hy allegedly disposing of leachate at the Galva WWTF 

that ··rna) cause serious bann to the \-VWTF" allegedly caused water pollution in violation of 

§ 12(a) or the Act. 415 ILC'S 5t12(a) Yd. as set forth above. in order to violate § 12(a) of the 

Act. 41 S ILCS 5fl2(a), one must ··cause c1r threaten or allow the discharge of contaminants ... so 

as to caus~ or tend lCI cause \\<Her pollullon." Here, there is no allegation either that ALC caused 

\II threatcnt:d or allo\\ cd the discharge or contaminants so as to cause or threaten or allow water 

pollution in the \\\Hers of the state 1\lllhat is alleged is that ALC discharged leachate into the 

Galva WWTF. Then.: is no alkgation that the discharge reached or even threatened to reach any 

\\ater of the stat~!. Whtle Count IJI, paragraph 17, mentions that the Galva WWTF discharges 

cfl1uent mto the Edwards River, there is no allegation that the leachate that ALC discharged into 

the Galva \V\VTF e!lher enkred or threatened to enter the Edwards River or that it caused or 

tended to cause pollution 1n the Ed\\an.b River. 

1\s the court held in Cru::.ens UI;t,t;es. 127 Til. App. 3d at 507, discussed in Part l(C) of 

this Motkm: 

Thl.! problem with this position is that without reference to actual, 
result rng pollution, the conditions are too vague for rational 
enforcement 

There IS no alleged "actuaL resulting pollution" arising from alleged violations of the statutory 
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standards set forth in Count ill. Moreover, as set forth in Part III(C) ofthis Motion, no permit 

was required for the alleged discharges into the Galva WWTF, in any event. Thus, the entirety 

of Counts li1 and IV are insufiiciem to srate a cause of action under§ 12(a) of the Acl, 415 fLCS 

51 12(a). Accordingly, they must be stricken and dismissed. 

B. Since No Specific Violations of Pretreatment Standards Are Alleged Under 40 C.F.R. 
403.5(8}( l)-(8) and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1101(B)(l )-(13), No Cause of Action is Stated. 

Paragraph 18 of Counts 1II and IV alleges, as follows: 

The discharge of certam types of wastewater without an operating 
pennit, including leachate generated by landfills, may cause 
serious ham1 to the Galva WWTF by upsetting the treatment 
process. interfering v.~th the normal operation of the Galva WWTF 
or causing conditions at the Galva WWTF which may be harmful 
to Galva WWTF workers and which may result in contaminants 
passing through the Galva WWTF untreated. (Emphasis added.) 

Thus, paragraph 18 of Cotm1s Ill and lV al leges that leachate "may" cause upset, interference, 

pass through. ham1 to workers or damage to the Galva WWTP. No actual upset, interference. 

pass through, ham1 to workers or damage to the Galva WWTP is alleged. 

If actual upset, interference, pass through, hann or damage to the Galva WWTF had 

occurred there would ha\ e been an ample legal basis to bring an action against ALC. The 

regulations setting forth the applicable pretreatment standards are set forth in Part T(O) ofthis 

Motion to Dismiss. Yet, nowhere in the entirety ofthe Complaint are actual violations of those 

federal and state regulations constitUting the pretreatment program actually alleged. All that is 

alleged is that leachate "nwv'' cause upset, interference. pass Urrough, harm to workers or 

damage to the Galva WWTP. That something "may cause" harm is not tantamount to actually 

causing hann. Allegations about events that "may occur," "fail to give the Respondent fair 

notice of the specific dates of alleged infractions of the law so as to enable him to properly 

prepare a defense." EPA ,. Rosenbalm. PCB No. 71-299. 1973 Tll. ENV LEXIS 2 (January 16, 
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197 3 ). supra. The STATE has not even attempted to allege eiU1er that actual hann occurred or 

that an acwal \ iolution of the pretreatment regulations occurred. 

C. Coum IV Fa tis to State a Cause of Action and Must Be Dismissed Pursuant to § 2-615 of the 
Colle of Civil Procedure. 735 JLCS 5/2-615. Because No Pennit Was Required forthe Allei!ed 
D1schare.es. 

Count TV of the Complaint alleges that ALC allegedly disposed ofleachate at the Galva 

\V\\ TF Without J pennit amlthereb) allegedly violated § 12(b) of the Act. 415 lLCS 5 '12(b) and 

~5 Ill. Adm. Code 309.204(a). Counts N fails to allege a violation of§§ 12 (h) of the Act, 415 

ILCS 51 l2tbl aml 35 rll. A<.lm. Code 309.204(a), because 110 permit wus required for that alleged 

<.ltspClsnl of leachate. As set forU1 in Pan l(A) of this Motion to Dismiss, § l2(f) of the Act, 415 

lLCS 5' 11( f) pro\'ides that "No penn it sha ll be required ... for any discharge for whjch a 

['PDES] perm11 is not recttornf' under the C\\'A. Under the CWA, an WDES permit, is 

required under for any disch:uge of a pollutant from a point source to waters of the United 

St.lles.11
' Howe\ cr. an !',rpOES permit JS not required discharges directly into POTW, which ts 

e:-..cludcd from tile definition of"waters of the United States". 17 Accordingly, no pennil is 

rcqlnrcd for a disdlJ.rge mto a POTVv' under & l2(f) of the Acl. 415 fLCS 5/11( f). 

TI1e Galva WWTF is a POTW. Thus, no pem1it was required for any discharge into U1e 

Gal\ i.l \\'WTf. Gn en that no permit was required for any discharge into the Galva WWTF. 

there could not have been an) penn1l vrolation for any tlischarge into the Galva WWTF. 

Despite the requirements of§12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/ 12(f), the Complaint alleges 111 

Count L\', parugraph 17. incoq)orated by reference into Count N , that a pe1mit is required for 

discharges into a treatment works pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.204(a). That regulation 

c;tatcs thai .. an operating perm II issued h) the Agency'' is required for the "operation of 

~ ~ C\\'A. *402. 3~ u.~.c §1342 
1 l \\A ~ 111(?llAJ. J 3 LS \ ~ I 2Y2(2)(A); .tO C.f R. 403.3(q): .tO C.F.R 122.J(c). O.K. McCall. liT. Clean 
lfatcl' Itt. 111 f:m mmmcnt:JI La\\ llandhook IT 'iulhvan ed 201 t) (''McCall'') at 323-324 

24 

Electronic Filing - Recived, Clerk's Office :  06/07/2013 



any ... waste'' ater source .. Yet. 35 Ul. Adm. Code 309.204 tlirectly contradtcts § 12(f) orthc Act, 

4 I 5 ILC'S 5112( f) aml IS, therefore, unenforceable. 

As ''llh tht: discussion orCount II in Part l{E) of this 'r-.1otion. Count IV contams no 

allegation that the discharge reached or even threatened to reach any water of the state, other 

than an r~lcrence in paragraph 19 that d1sposal at the Galva WWTF also constituted disposal 

··mdtrecth· to the Edwards Ri'er. which is a water of the State." Yet, pursuant to 40 CFR 122 2, 

an ''indrrecr dJschargeJ means a nondomesttc dJscharger introducing "pollutants" to a "publicly 

o" ned treatment "orks" (Emphasis added.) So. the STATE's allegation of an ''indirect" 

discharge into the Edwards River is nothing more than a roundabout manner of alleging that 

ALC discharged leachate inro a POT\\', t.c., the Galva WWTF. which is nor a water of the state. 

lienee, Count IV fails to allege a cause of action for violation of§ 12(b) of the Act, 415 lLCS 

5 12(bl. \1oreover. as set forth abo' e, no pemm was required for the alleged discharges iota the 

Galn WWTF. in any event. Thus. the entirety of Count fV is insufficient to state a cause of 

action under *I 2( h) or the Act. 415 ILCS 5112(b ). Accordingly. it must be stricken and 

dismissed 

IV, COUNTS rn AND IV MUST BE DISMISSED UNDER§ ''-619(a)(9) OF THE CODE OF 
CIVIL PROCEDURE. 735 LLCS 2-619(a)(9). 

A ALC'S Alleged Disposal of leachate at the Galva WWTF Was Authorized Pursuant To 35 
Ill. Adm. Code 307.11 01( 13) And 40 CFR 403.5(8) as Discharges ·'at Dischargl! Points 
Designated Bv the POTW." 

lount IV of the Complaint :11lcgcs that ALC allegedly disposed of leachate at the Galva 

W\VTF '' ithout a perm1t and thereby allegedly violated&§ I 2(b) of the Act, 415 lLCS 5/12(b). 

Yet. AlC"s alleged disposal of leachate at tbe Galva WWTF was specifically authorized under 

both state und federal Ia\\', 

As !)Ct forth 111 Part 11(.'\) ofthis Molion to Dismiss, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1101 
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provides, as fo!Jows: 

No person may introduce the following types ofpo11utants into a 
POTW: 

*** 
( 13) Any trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points 
designated by the POTW (Emphasis added.) 

Likewise. 40 CFR 403.5 provides, as follows: 

[T]he following pollutants shall not be introduced into a POTW: 

*** 
(8) .lny trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points 
des;gnated by the POTW. (Emphasis added.) 

Thus, a POTW. in this instance the Galva WWTF, has the authority under both 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 35 111. Adm. Code 307.110 I (13) and 40 CFR 403.5(8) to designate discharge points where 

"[a]ny trucked or hauled pollutants'' may be discharged. 

ALC did. in fact. comply with both 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1101(13) and 40 CFR 

403.5(8) with regard to the discharge of leachate. Attached hereto as Exhibit "B" is the Affidavit 

ofE1ik Vardijan, manager and tanker truck driver for ALC, confinning such compliance. There, 

Erik Vardijan states that on May 4, 2011 Greg Thompson, Water and Sewer Superintendent. City 

of Galva. designated a discharge point to discharge all leachate from ALC into the sewers of the 

Galva W WTF. That discharge point was at the main sewer interceptor to the North Treatment 

Plant. All of leachate from ALC that was subsequently discharged into the Galva WWTF was 

discharged at that same designated d[scharge point. Therefore, the discharge that is the subject 

or Count IV or the Complaint compl1ed with the provisions of35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1101(13) 

and 40 CFR 403.5(8) because it was discharged at points designated by the POTW. In addition, 

35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.110 l ( 13) and 40 CFR 403 .5(8), in referring to the word "any" trucked or 
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haukd pollutants, also alllhori7cs the POTW to dctem1ine the amount of the djscharge. 18 

1\ccordingl). there \\as no \'iolation of the Act. 

V CONCLUSION. 

In summary. Counts I-ll relating to alleged dtscharges into the Village STP are 

suhstantially insurficiem in lnw and must be dismissed pursuant to§ 2-615 of the Code Of Civil 

Procedure, 7J5 ILCS 5 l~-615 . First of all. no permit v. as required for the alleged discharges that 

purportedly '-'10intctl Pem1it No. 2008-E0-0331. Secondly, the Complaint fails to allege any 

st~1tutory basts fur the issuance of Pern1it No. 2008-E0-0331 or for its attempted restriction on the 

tlisposaJ of leachate Thirdly. the allegations of Counts 1 and 11 are vague and ambtguous, as are 

the tem1s of Pcnnit no 2008-E0-0331 upon which they are based, and thereby fail to provide 

notice o a specJiic \iolatton chargeJ and notice of the specific conduct constituting the 

violtltion. Fourthly. since no speci fie violations of pretreatment standards are alleged under 40 

C I .R . .. tQ3.5(81( I H8) and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1101 {B)(l)-(13). no cause of action is stated. 

Fif1hly. COltnts 1 And U fail to sufficiently allege that ALC caused or contributed to water 

pollutto1 in\ iolation of * 12(a) and (b) of the Act, 415 I LCS 5/12(a) and (b). Fifthly, no 

3Uthont\ c\.ists under§ 3 t of the Act -1-15 lLCS 5/31. for the Attorney General to bring an action 

on her own motwn. 

Addtltonally. Counts I And II must be dismissed under§ 2-619(a)(9) of the Code of Civil 

Procedure. 7J'S ILCS ] .. 6J 9(a)(9). In parttcular, ALC's alleged disposal of leachate at the 

\ tllage STP was authori7cd under Special Conditions 2 arid 3 of Permit No. 2008-E0-0331 and 

pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.110 I und 40 CFR 403.5(8) as discharges "at discharge points 

dc.;tgnaled b~ the POTW . ·· 

•H T}l~ word .. 3ny" ,., ddined 111 pellment part a:> "Some: one out of many; an tnt.lefinite number" Black's La\' 
Dtctlllllar), 4 11 Eu 
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Furthennore, Counts ITI-IV relating to discharges into the Galva WWTF are substantially 

insufficient in Ia" and must be dismissed pursuant to § 2-615 of the Code Of Civil Procedure. 

735 ILCS 512-615. First of all, Counts fl l and fV fail to sufficiently allege that ALC caused or 

contributed to water pollution in violation of§ 12(a) and (b) and ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/ 12(a) 

and (b). Second!}, since no spec1 fie violations of pretreatment standards are alleged under 40 

C.F.R. 403.5(b)(l )-(8) and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1101 (b)(l )-(13), no cause of action is stated. 

Thirdly, Count IV fails to stale a cause of action and must be dismissed pursuant to§ 2-615 of 

the Code of Civil Procedure. 735 ILCS 5/2-615. because no pennit was required for the alleged 

djschnrges. 

AdditiOnally. Counts fll And IV must be dismissed under§ 2-619(a)(9) of the Code Of 

Civil Proceuure. 735 I LCS 2-619{a)(9) ln particular, ALC's alleged disposal of leachate at the 

Galva WWTF was authorized pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 307.1101 and 40 CFR 403.5 as 

discharges "at discharge points designated by the POTW." 

WHEREFORE. ALC mo\es that the Complaint be stricken and dismissed. 

KENNETH ANSPACH, ESQ. 
ANSPACH LAW OFFICE 

Ill \Vest Washington Street 
Suite 16.25 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
(312) 407-7888 

Respondent, ATKINSON LANDFILL CO., 

THlS FILING IS SUBMITTED ON RECYCLED PAPER. 
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BEFOR~ THE 11.1.11\0IS POJ'.LUTION CONTROL DOARD 

P~OJ>LE OF 'rHt:: STATE OF JLLlNOIS. 

Comrlnina11. 

v 

) 
) 
) 
) 

) 

) 
) 

) 
) 

PCD No 13-2H 

t\TKl\!SO'\ tAi'JOJII.I. CO .. 

Rcspond~rt 

A~HDA VIT OF GARY HULL 

Gary Hull, bt~mg lir!'t duly sworn. deposes and :;nys thr1l: 

1. I b~tH' been ~mploycd by Atkinson Lam.lfill Co. as a truck driver. 

~ On or around M.trch 16. 20 II J drove a tanker truck containing a load of le:1chate 
(the ''ALC l.l!achate"} !'ro!11 the Atkinson l andfiU to the Village of Atkinson 
Sl'wogc Tn.:utmem Plant (the "Atkinson STP") where 1 met village t:mployee, Bob 
F!oming, who told m~ that the Atkin~on STP had mo mu<:h worer due to he~vy 
r~ins from the past sevcr{d days. 

I. J\t that t11nc ~md place, Mr. Floming told me to then go to the abundoncd ga:; 
Sl3ti<.>n locnted on th(.' southwest corner of the I I1lcrsc~;liun or SuHe Street (Or 
Coumy Road 5) und Commercie~J Drive and dtscharge the AI.C Leachate into the 
scw~r access thl.'re. 

4. 1 called l)ianil Vardijan, a manager at Atkinson La.ndfill, and told her what Mr. 
Flommg hod din.:ctcd me to do. She told me: to prm:e~d with the Village 
rt>presemari ,,~ • ~ i nstnlct ion~. 

5. I proceed to thl! designJted location n~ rcr Mr. F'lomillg1s instructionli and 
dic;;charged the ALC Leachate into the sewer system. 

Under penalties as pmvided b)' law pursuant to Secllon 1-l 09 of tb~ Code of Civil 
J>roccdun!t Ute uncl~r !'lgned ccrtll:es that tht' :Halements set forth in this aflidavit are true 
and correct to the best of h1s knowledge 

Gary Hull 

EXl flF3IT "A" 
,-... .. _____ .._ __ -- -
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BEFURE TJ IE ILUNOJS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

Pf-'OPLC 01 11-J[ STATE or ILLINOIS, 

Complainant. 

v. PCB No. 13-28 

/\l'KJNSON LANDriLL CO .. 

Respondent. 

Af-FIDAVIT OF ERIK V ARDIJAN 

Erik Vardijan being lirst ciul) sworn, deposes and says that: 

1. I have been employed b> Atkinson Landfill Co. since 2001 as a truck driver 

and manager. 

::!. On May ..f. 2011 1 drove a tanker truck containing a load of leachate {the '·AL( 

Lcachare'') from the \tkinsnn Landfill to the C'it) ofGal\'a wastewater treatmelll facilit\ 

("Cialva WWTr:"'). This lond was the lirst to be delivered from the Atkinson Landfill to 

the Galva \\'WTF. 

3. \tthat lime and place Greg Thompson. Water and Sev.·er SuperintendcnL Cit) 

ol' Galva, designated a discharge poin1 for me to discharge the ALC Leachate into se,vcrs 

of the Galva \\ Vt I F. n1at Jisebarg.c point was at the main sewt!r interceptor to the North 

Treatment Plant (the ··Plant"). ahout 1000 feet from the Plant. 

'-1 . All subsequent loads of ALC LeachAte discharged by ~ither me or other tanker 

truck drivers cmploycJ by ALC. wen.: discharged into the sewers of the Galva WWTF at 

the same designated lh<:charge point. 

EXHlBTT "B" 
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tinder penalties as provided by law pursuant to Section 1-109 of the Code of Civil 

Procedure. the undersigned certi11es that the statements set forth in this affidavit are true 

and correct to the hest of his kno\\lcdgc. 

') 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certiiies under penalties of perjury as provided by law pursuant to 735 
ILCS S1l-l 09, thut the attached Motion to Strike and Dismiss First Amended Complaint and 
Supporting Memorandllm was_ personally delivered, _X_ placed in the U. S. Mail. with first 
class postage prepaid. _ sent ' 'ia facsimile and directed to all parties of record at the 
aJdress(cs) set forth below on or before 5:00p.m. on the th day ofJune, 2013. 

Kathryn A. Pamcnter 
Assistant Attomc:r General 
Environmental Bureau 
69 West Washmgton Street 
181h Floor 
Ch1cago, IL 60602 

~~v/ - .,.--
~Ak/% ~ 

KENNETII ANSP I I, ESQ. 
ANSPACH LAW OFFICE 
I I I West Washington Avenue 
Suite 1625 
Ch1cago. Illinois 60602 
(312) 407-7888 

Bradley P. Halloran 
Hearing Officer 
Illinois Pollution Control Board 
I 00 West Randolph Street 
Suite 11-500 
Chicago, IL 6060 I 
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